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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
To the Members of Royalux Exports Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Royalux Exports Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity,
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024, its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual report for the financial year 2023-24 but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the {inancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively forensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial conirols with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures arc inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.




Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and si gnificant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”} issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section
143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 1o the extent
applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

@

™

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
of those books:

The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, and
the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this repert are in agreement with the books of account;

In cur opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of
the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report in “Annexure 27,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the
Act, as amended:

In our opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
1o its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the question of any material
; foresceable losses does not arise;

{1ii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.




(iv)  (a)
(b}
(c)

(v)

{vi)

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, incluoding foreign entities (*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come 1o our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(g)
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and until the date of this report.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below, the Company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software:

a. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data
changes for the accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of account relating to payroll of the
accounting software used for maintaining general ledger.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under

Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056
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ANNEX

URE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph | under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date
to the members of Royalux Exports Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

To the best of our information and according to the information, explanations, and written representations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit we report that:

(i

(ii)

{iii)

(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

{e)

(a)

In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and intangible assets.

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment and right of
use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years,
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of ils assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets which were due for
physical verification during the ycar were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable property including investment properties (other than properties
where the Company is the lessce and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment, Right of Use assets and intangible assets
during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year,
except for goods in transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for cach class of inventory were noticed on
physical verification which have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by banks based on the security of current
assets during the year. The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company

with such banks and such returns are materially
in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantec or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships

(LLPs) or any other parties during the year.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(e), 3(iii)(d), 3(ii)(e). 3{iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Head Office: Raj Tower-1, G-1, Alaknanda Community Center, New Delhi-110 018, India
Ph.; +91-11-26025140 E-mail: bgj:ﬂhgjf.in
Delhi Mumbai Moida Ranchi Udaipur
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(iv)

(v)

{vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security, as applicable. Further.
the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185,

The Company has not accepted any deposits and there are no amounts which have been considered as deemed deposit
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148
of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues including goods
and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further. no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statulory dues referred to in subclause
(a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not
been recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations received from banks and
other lenders and written representation received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of
our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of term
loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the
finaneial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long
term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined under Companies
Act, 2013) during the year ended March 31, 2024. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.




(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

(xvil)

(xviii)

{xix)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

According fo the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles
of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the management
of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by the
Company. with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) 24. Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Aet.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have an internal audit system
under section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash fransactions
with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly.
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as
defined in the regulations made by the RBI and there are no Core Investment Companies in the Group. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) and 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company,

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilitics, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention. which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilitics existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of cne year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is nol an assurance as o the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.




(xx) {a)  There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a
transfer to a Fund Specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with second proviso to sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

(b)  The Company has not undertaken any ongoing projects in relation to its CSR activities. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3{xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xxi) The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Further, the reporting under clause (xxi) is
not applicable 1o the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For BGIC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis

ICAT Firm Registration No. 093304N/N500036
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Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 24098308BKCOBB6150

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Noida
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 2 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s Report of
even date to the members of Royalux Exports Private Limited on the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Royalux Exports Private Limited (“the Company™) as
of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAI"™).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company 's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their aperating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over finaneial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Head Office: Raj Tower-1, G-1, Alaknanda Community Center, New Delhi-110 019, India
Ph.; +91-11-26025140 E-mail: bgjeibgicin
Delhi Mumbai Noida Ranchi  Udaipur
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Voo 52>

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 24098308BK.COBB6150

Date: May 24, 2024
Place: Noida



ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN Ne.-U31909DL2021FTC 370952

Balance Sheet os of March 31, 2024

[INR i miitlion, except share and per share dafa, unless ofhenyise sterted)

Asal As of
Hole March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Assels
Mon-cument assels
Property, plant and equipment a 26,23 30.80
Right of use gsel 4 3913 42 44
Ciher intangible assals 5 ooz ons
Financial ossely
[i} Other financiol ossets & 1.3 137
Detemoed tox asset (Mel) 7 758
MNon curent fax aset [Med) a - 00e
Clher non curent assets g 179 304
Total non curment assels 76,14 7772
Cumment assels
Invertonies 10 26944 284.99
Financiel assels
{i] Trade receivables 1 527.83 294,78
[il) Cash and cosh equivalenis 12 309 1.34
[} Bank balances ather than (i) above 13 - 225
[} Other financiol assets 14 0.40 0.83
Other cunen! ossels 15 9.90 i4.21
Tatal curreni assels 810,84 598.40
Tolal Assets 887.00 £74.12
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Eqquity shore copital I& .13 031
Olher equity 17 |G & 117.02
Tolal Equity 8177 207.33
Non-cumenl Nabilitles
Financial iabilfies
{1} Bomowings 18 35420 -
i) Lease liobilties 19 489 724
Prowisicons 2 .49 1.92
Tetal non-cument liabilities 3778 .18
Current labilifles
financial iobilities
1l Bamowings 21 200.91 351.63
[i] Lecase falbiddifies n 035 032
(i) Trade payables 23
- lolal sutstanding dues ol micro and small enferpsizes and small enferprises 684 4.70
- total eulstanding dues of credilons other than micro ond small enterprises 481 15.33
fiv] Other fincincial Eobililies 24 7.89 S6.87
Diher cumant labiklies 25 am 0.75
Provisions 24 0.05 003
Current tax liabilifies (Met) 7 |57 -
Tobal cumrrent liabilifics 22745 #5943
Telal liebililies 599.23 46879
Tolal equity and Fabilities 887.00 5£76.12
The accompanying noles are an integral parl of these financial stolements
As per aur reporl of even dale.
For BGIC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Boord of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Firm’s Registration No.. 003304/ NE00054
o0
Pranav Join ** Hordeep Singh Surmeet Kaur
Parlnes Direcior Directar
Membership No 028308 DIN: D01 18729 DN D01 18695
Place: Noida

Dale: May 74, 2024



ROYALUX EXPORTS FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U315%09DL2021PTC3%0952

Stalement of Profit & Lass for Ihe year ended Mareh 31, 2024

[INR in milion, excep! share and per shave dalo, unless ofhenwise stoted]

Year ended Year ended
ok March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operalions bl 530.22 694 A2
Other income il 1113 3121
Total Income 541.35 726.02
Exponses
Cost of malerols consumed i} 35594 52708
Change in invenloriss 3l iz2.11 [51.05)
Employes benefils expense 32 25,59 16.54
Finance cosls 3B 43,04 1525
Depreciation and amorlisafion expense 34 10.35 943
Olher axpensesy a5 12,86 9080
Tatal expenses 484.93 08,24
Profit before tax 54.42 117.7%
Tax Expenses
Curren! fox 1267 -
Defered fox charge/! {credl] =
Related io aarlier years 593 .
15.00 -

Profit affer fax 35.42 117.7¢
Other comprehensive income
Hems that will nol be reclassified lo prolit or loss
- Remeasuremen| of defined benelit plans poz2 037
= Income fax ielaling o these items - -
Other compiehensive Income lor the year, net of fax 0.02 0.37
Total comprehensive income for the year 35.44 11814
Earnings per equily share :
Homnal value of Bs. 10 each (previous year Bs, 10 ecch)
~Basic [ in Rs) 36 A48 1304
-Diluted [ Rs) 36 345 1304
The occompanying noles are an infegral parl of these financial statemeants
Far BGIC & Associales LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directhors of
Chartered Accouniants ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Firm's Rergistrafion No.: 033048 /NSO0054

Voo™

Franav Jain
FPartrnes
Membership No. 094308

Surmea! Kaur
Drecior

DIN D01 18485

Place: Noida
Date: May 24, 2024




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Stalement for the year ended March 31,2024

(IR s milllion, except share and per share dala, imiess otferwise slated)

A Cosh flow from operating activitios
Net profit before fax

Adjustments tor:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss on dispozal of ossets

finance costs

Interest Income

Unteqlised {oreign exchange loss (net]

Operaling cash flow belore working capital changes

Adjustmenis for (increase) / decrease in operating assels:

finerease)/Decrease curant inoncial osse
{Increase)/Decrecsa Mon curent finonciol osset
[Increase)/Decrease other non curenl assels
(Increwse| /Decrense other cumen! ossels
{lncreoa) /Decreose in Inventones

[Increase) /Deciease Trode receivables
Increase/[Dectedse| other currant financial liabiflies
[Decrease] fincrecse olher curent habililies
Increasa/[Decrease) Provisians
Increase/|Decraase] Trade payables

Cash used in operations

Inesme tax poid (net of refunds)

Het cash used in operating activities

B. Cash flow rom investing activities:

Furchase of property, plan! ond equipment fincluding
intongible asels and copilal advance)

Sale of properfy. plant and equipment and inlangible assete
Addificn of property, plant and equipment from takeover
Mavemenl in Fixed Deposils

Interest received

Net cash used in investing oclivities

C. Cdsh flow from finoncing activities*

Increase/{Deciease) in borawings rom banks
Increase/[Deciease) in borowings from rekaled parly
Issue of Share capital

Share Premium

Payment of Loase Obligofions

Inferas! paod

Nel cash generated from financing aclivities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beglnning of the year
Caosh ond cash equivalents at the end of the year [see below)

Notes to cazh flaw statement
(1) Cemponent: of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks,
AIn curent aocounts
Cash on hand

[A)

(631

(c)

(A++C)

Yeor ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
5447 Nnz.re
10,35 780
151
40.04 1525
[0.12] (.18}
114.47] (13.58)
71.55 129.09
0:23 {083
(008} [1.31)
|25 [3.04]
43 [1421)
15.55 [PR4.5%)
(21838} {281 .07)
(50.42) 54 43
224 10.34)
11.22) 194
[8.38] 19.92
{163.33) (380.23)
[24.95) [0,08)
(188.28) (380.29)
(3.95) (71 74)
= (0.04)
- [15.10)
275 {225
0.12 0.18
(1.58) (38.99)
[122.23) 171.04
30570 21049
882 021
34.18 (38.99)
i1.03 .
(35.83) 13.03)
191.61 420.42
1.75 1.14
1.34 0.20
3.0% 1.34
3m 1.18
0.07 (14
3.0% 1.34




(i} “Reconciliation belween the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for labilifics arising from financing activities:

MNon Current
Borrowings
{including Cumen Borrawings u:l.::;l'::
cumenl
malurilies)
Balance as ol April 1, 2023 7.56 I74.08 756
Loan drawal fin cashlfintferest accrued duting the veor 260.50 11268 o7l
Trensfar from Cumrent to Mon Curant 103.70 {103.70)
Loan repoyments/interest payment during thie yeor [1.52) (782.15) [1.03)
Other non cash changes
Balance as at March 31,2024 384.19 200.91 724
Balance as ot Aprl 1, 2022 - olo
Loan drowals {in cosh)finterest accrued during the year 15 1
fincluding oddifion from lakeover of proprietary business) At 144485 852
Loon iepaymearnts/interest poyment duning the year {5771 (107080} |056)
Other non cath changes:
Bolance as ot March 31, 2023 7.58 374.08 7.586
(i} The cosh flow staterment hos been prepored under the indirect method as set oul in Ind AS 7 Cash Pow Statemenis,
i) Noles o the Fnancials Stalements are infegral part of the Cash Flow Statement.
As perowr report of even dole.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behali of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Firm’s Regisiration No., D03304N/N500054

Pranav lain Singh Surmeet Kaur

Paortres Director Director

Mermbership No. 098308 DN 001 18727 PDR QIN - 00118495
AR

Place: Maida
Date: May 24, 2024




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equily for the year ended March 31,2024
{INE in milfion, excep) share and per share dala, unless olhérwvle siated)

A. Equity Shore Capital™

Balance as ol April 01, 2022 o010
Change in aquily share capifal during F.Y. 2022.23 F0.21
Balance as al March 31, 2023 70.31
Change In equily share capital dudng .Y, 7023-24 B2
Bolance as ol March 31, 2024 99.13
B, Other Equily™
Reserve & Surplus Remeasurement
Particulars Equity Component | Securifies Premium |  HRetained Earnings | of defined benefit| Total Other Equity
plans

Balonce as ot April 01, 2022 - [1.14) - {1.14)
Profit lor fhe yeor - 11772 - 117.79
Olher comprehensive Income - - 0.37 0.37
Tatal Camprehensive Income - 117.79 0.37 118.16
Teanster to Equilly - * - -
Transher rom Reloined eamings - - - -
Balonce as al March 31, 2023 - - 11645 0.37 117.02
Profit for the year 35.42 - 3542
Other comprehensive InCome 0.02 0.02
Seciurilios premium = 34,18 = - 356.18
Transter to Eguity - = = =
Transfer from Relained eomings - - - -
Balonce as at March 31, 2024 = 36.18 152.07 0.3% 188.64
**The accomponying notes | 6 and |/ are integral part of these financial stotements

For BGIC & Assocldtes LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directers of

Chorfered Accounianis ROY PORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Firm's Registration Ma.: D03304M/M

bo Losrs et Wiinan,.

Pranav laln Hardeep Singh Surmeet Kaur

Farfner Directo [Hectar

Membership Ma. D9B308 DAN; 001 18729 DM : D01 18495

Ploce: Noido
Date: Moy 24, 2024
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Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Background

Royalux Exports Private Limited is a Company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at Delhi. The
Company was incorporated in India on December 07, 2021. The entity is manufacturer and exporter of high-end
LED Lighting and ABS Pipes.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) - read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA")), as amended and other relevant provisions of the
Act,

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on May 24, 2024. The revisions to the financial statements are permitted by the Board of Directors after
obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act,

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cyecle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Act.

Based on the above criteria, the Company has ascertained its accounting cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR/Rs.), which is also the Company s functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost hasis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit liability Present value of defined benefit obligations,

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.




(vi)

Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

e Note no. 38: leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease;

* Note no. 45: classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held
and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2024 is included in the following notes:

¢ Note no. 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment:

* Note no. 4 & 5: impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts
including the recoverability of expenditure on internally- generated intangible assets;

= Note no. 37: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources;

= Note no. 45: Fair value measurement of financial instruments and impairment of financial assets.

Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-
financial assets and habilities,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either —

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole.

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unochservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis

of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained




2.1

(i)

Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Summary of material accounting policies

Revenue

In rccognising revenue, the Company applics Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard require apportioning revenue
earned from contracts to individual promises. or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price basis,
using a five-step model.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount that reflect
the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, which 1s generally the transaction price, net of any taxes/duties and
discounts,

The Company eams revenue from sales of High-end LED lighting, ABS Pipe, Battery and Solar Panel.

Revenue from sale of High-end LED lighting, ABS Pipe, Battery and Solar Panel

Revenue from Sale of High-end LED lighting. ABS Pipe. Battery and Solar Panel is recognized at the point of time
upon transfer of control of promised goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company
eapects 0 receive in exchange for those goods i.e.. when it is probable that the entity will reecive the ceonomic
benefits associated with the transacrion and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the contracted price, net of any
taxes/dutics and discounts considering the impact of variable consideration.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts,
service Jevel credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any. as specified in the contract

with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract Balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition: -

* The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods.

s At the time of entering into the agreement / raising an invoice, performance obligations in the contract are
identified. The Company delivers goods as per terms & condition of the contract. Contracts are of differing
natures and sometimes have one specific performance obligation, and on other occasions have multiple
performance obligations. Contract Liability has been created towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied

performance obligations.

s Contract fulfilment costs are expensed as incurred




Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Interest income
Interest income on time deposits and inter-corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other income
In respect of other heads of income, the Company follows the practice of recognising income on accrual basis.

(ii)  Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment arec measured at cost, net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), which
includes capitalised borrowing costs less (if capitalisation criteria is met) accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, if any, afier deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly auributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
itemn and restoring the site on which it 1s located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Subsequent expenditureg

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate,
only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation methods. estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value over
their useful life using written down value method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are
as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule II of the Act.

Particulars Useful lives (in years)

Property Plant & Equipment:

Furniture and fixtures 10

Plant & Machinery 13

Office equipment’s 5

Vehicle’s : : g-10 *1..? OR)‘

Computer equipment’s 3 < 610
Py =
= —

¥

-rod’ ~
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Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on addition
to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use.
Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction
or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes. if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will
flow to the Company and where its cost can be reliably measured,

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost
attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Amortisation

Amortisation is caleulated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the written
down value method and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets: Useful lives (in years)
Software 3

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach financial year-end, and changes, if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and recognised as income or
expense in the sutement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's or
cash-generating units (CGUs) recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific-to
CGU (or the asset).

i
&
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Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect
of'a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 1o the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are mitially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
habilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through profit and loss.
Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is expensed in the statement of
profit and loss,

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
s amortised cost;
»  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT), or

s  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Financial asscts arc not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as FVTPL:

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows:
and




Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
FVTPL:
* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
¢ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading. the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI - equity investment),
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVTOC] as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI
orat FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

* the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management:

= the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

 how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assels managed or the contractual cash flows eollected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and admmistrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual ferms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would nots
condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:




Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

» terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment and
extension features; and

= terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial
assel acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substanually represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at imitial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Finaneial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method. foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,

Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL 1f 1t 18 classified as held for trading, or 1t is a derivative or 1t 18 designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

iii. Offsetting
Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and

only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and seftle the liabilities simultaneously.
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iv. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains

either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Impairment of financial instruments:

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: -

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVTOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities
at FVTOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

» significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

* abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

* the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

* itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or another financial reorganisation; or

= the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss:
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument,
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12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are

possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
1s relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quanfitative and qualitative information
and analysis. based on the Company s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed
credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

* the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

e the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Inventories

[nventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
weighted averape.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs necessary 10 make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by itein basis.
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Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the related
services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service, The liabilities are presented as current employes
benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plan: Providem fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a predetermined
rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1952, These
contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The Company has no
further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contribution to defined
contribution plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the period during
which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments to
vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount equivalent
to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting oceurs upon completion of five years of service.
Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date,

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service
cost as at the balance sheet date. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined
benefit obligation is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The Company’s
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employeces
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount.

The Company’s determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
the then-net defined benefit liability. taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in the Other
Comprehensive Income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service (‘past service cost’ or “past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement oceurs,

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences
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Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits. The liability in
respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty. if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also
recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for;

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax asseis —
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on differem
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assers and liabilities
will be real.




Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(x)  Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions

Contingent liability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Contingent assels

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mere uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speeific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost,

(xi)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short-term, hi ghly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

(xii)  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, share split or
consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the vear attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as at the
begmning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date,
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Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker,

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment information
are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant
in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-
segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are
included under unallowable expenditure,

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable 1o segments 1s included in unallowable
income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole
and not allocable to any segment,

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s *Chief Operating Decision Maker' or ‘CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 40 for segment information.

Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

= the contract involves the use of an identified asset

* the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and

* the Company has the right 1o direct the use of the asset.

Atthe date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises aright-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognises the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will beg




(xv)

Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assels are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases, Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows,

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease, Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset arising from the
head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the company.
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ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC370952

Notes to the financial statements as ot March 31, 2024

fINR in million, except share and per shara dota, unless atherwise stated)

4 Right of use assets

Reconciliation of carrying value Amount

Gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2022 -
Addition from takeover of proprietary business 48.96
Addition during the period =
Adijustment on oecount of modification 0.98
Closing gross carying amount as at March 31, 2023 49.94

Addition during the period %
Adiustment an account of modification

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31,2024 49.94
Accumulated amorisation & impairment as at April 01,2022 L
Addition from takeover of proprietary Business 4.09
Amortisation for the year 3.39
Closing accumulated ameortisation & impairment as of March 31,2023 7.48
Amordisation for the year 3.33
Closing accumulated amortisation & impairment os at March 31,2024 3.33
|Net carrying ameunt as at March 31, 2023 42 44
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 39.13
Mote:

During the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023, the entity recognised right of use assels as per Ind AS 116 “Leases”
{Refer note no 38),

—Space intentionally left blank-—
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[INR in milion, except share and pershare dota, uniess ofherwise stated)

5 Otherintangible assets
Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross block (at cost) Accumulated depreciation Net block
Additions As at As at As at
As at Disposal/ As at Forthe  Disposal/
Description during the March 31, March 31, March 31,
April, 01, 2023 Year Adjustment 2024 April, 01,2023 Year  Adjustment 2024 2024
Computer Software 0.06 - . 0.06 0.01 0.02 - 0.03 0.02
0.04 - - 0.06 0.01 0.02 - 0.03 0.02
Year ended March 31, 2023
Gross block (at cost) Accumulated depreciation Net block
Additions As at As at As at
As Disposal/ As at Forthe  Disposal/
Description " during the March 31, March 31, March 31,
April, 01, 2022 Year Adjustment 2023 April, 01,2022 Year  Adjustment 2023 2023
Computer Software = 0,06 - 0.06 - 0.01 - 0.01 0.05
0.06 - 0.0& - 0.01 - 0.01 0.05
Footnote:

(i) There are no internally generated intangible assets.

{ii) There are no other restriction on fifle of intangible assets other than os already disclosed.

{ii} There are no exchange differences adjusted in intangible assets.

{iv)]The Company has not acquired Intangible assets free of charge. or for nominal consideration, by way of a government grant.

{v] The Company has not camied out any revaluafion of Infangible assets for the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023,

'—Space intenfionally left blank-—
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Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2024

(INR in million. except share and per share data, unlass otherwise stated)

As at As at

[ Other financial assets (Non-current) Mckeh 31 Niarch 31

Unsecured, considered goods

Security deposit 1.39 1.31
1.39 1.31
As ot As at
7 d Net
Rt Scame () March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Prepaid rent -
MAT credit entiterment 7.58 -
7.58 -
For explanation on the Deferred Tax Asset [MNet), refer note 48,
B Non cument tax asset (Net) o As af
—March 31. 2024  March 31. 2023
Advance Tax - 0.06
i 0.04
As at As at

?  Ofhernon cument assets March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Balance with government authorities 1.38 2,34
Copital Advances - 0.25
Prepaid rent 0.41 0.45
1.7% 3.04

As at As ot

10 veniones March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw materials 141.82 T44.69
Work-in-progress 78.0% 100.44
Finished goods 29.53 3929
Goods-In-Transit - 0.57

249.44 284.99

Inventories are pledged as security for bomowings taken from bank [refer note no 21 !

—Space intentionoily left bliank-—




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC390952

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2024

(INR in million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

As at As al
11 Trade receivables March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured
Considered aood 527.83 294,78
Having significant increose in credit risk : -
Less: Provision for the expected credit loss - =
527.83 294.78
Footnote:
Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables- March 31, 2024
Farticulars QOutstanding as at March 31, 2024 from due date
NOtDUE (. Months | 6-12 months | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years Morethan3 [ rotal
Unsecured:
i| Undisputed Trade receivables — considered qood 59.91 254,79 119.24 93.89 - - 52783
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — Having significani
incr ' it 1i = - - = - -
iii} Undisputed Trade receivables — credil Impaired - £ = x = 2
[iv] Disputed Trade receivables — considered good = = = = =
{v) Disputed Trade receivables — Having significant Increase
in credit rigk i = = : = — =
{vi] Disputed Trade receivables — credit Impaired - . = - = =
Less: provision for the expected credif Ioss - - - - = -
Total 59.91 254.79 119.24 73.89 - - 527.83
Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables- March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding as at March 31, 2023 from due date
Wat e 0-6 Months | 6-12 months | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years Mnr:;:::n < Total
Unsecured:
i| Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 104.15 37.17 146,83 6.563 - - 274,78
i) Undisputed Trade receivables — Having significant
lincregse in credit risk = - = = = = 3
{iil} Undisputed Trade receivables — credit Impaired - - - - -
iv] Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables — Having signiticant increase
in credi risk s - - = - = =
(vi) Disputed Trade receivabies — credit Impaired - 5 - = S
Less: provision for the expected credit loss - - - - - =
Total 104.15 37.17 144.83 6.63 - - 294.78

The Cornpany hos measured expecied credit loss of rade receivable based on simplified approach as per

1. For explanation on the Company credit risk manogernsnt process, refer nate 45

2 Trade receivables are non interest bearing.

3. Trade receivables ore pledged as securty for borrowings taken from barnk [refer note no 21)

'—Space intentionally left blank—
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ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2024

(INR in million, except share ond per share data, unless otherwise sfated)

12 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

-0On cument accounts
Cash on hand

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, refer note 45,

13 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposit

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, refer note 45,

14 Other financial assets (Cument)

Unsecured, considered goods
Other Receivables

15 Other current assets

Unsecured, considered goads
Prepaid expense

Advances to supplier

Prepaid lease

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3.02 1.18
0.07
3.09
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.25
2.25
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.60 0.83
0.60 0.83
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
o7 0.80
9.15 13.37
0.04 0.04

5.50 14.21




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC390952

Nofes to the financial statements as ot March 31, 2024

(INR in million, except share and per share data, unless ofherwise stated)|

16 Equity share capital

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised Shares Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10000000 100.00 10000000 100.00
10000000 100.00 10000000 100.00
Issued Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid 9913220 99.13 030848 20.31
9913220 99.13 9030848 90.31
Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid 9913220 9913 9030848 20.31
9913220 §9.13 9030848 90.31
16.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.
As ot As at
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Number of shares al the beginning 9030848 20.31 10000 0.10
Add: Shares issued during the vear 882352 8.82 020848 90.21
Add [ [Less) : Shares issued / bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 9913220 99.13 2030848 20.31
16.2 Details of the Share holders holding more than 5% shares along with number of shares held
As af As af
- Mﬂil:‘.h 31, 2024 h March 31, 2023
0.0 ; anges
Name of shareholder Shares 7 of Equity during the Holdingin % of total equity
Shares numbers shares
held vear
Fine Technologies(india) Pvt Ltd and its nominee - - - 9030868 100.00%
Rovalux Lighting Private Limiled and its nominee® 9913220 100% . . =
16.3 Details of the Shares held by promoters at the end of year
As af As af
ot March 31 2024Ch March 31, 2023
X % of Equity M98 Holdingin % of fotal equity
Name of sharehalder s::]r:s Shares dut:,?, rIhe rRvsars r—
Fine Technoloaies(india] Pvf Ltd and ifs nominee - - - 9030858 100.00%
Royalux Lighting Private Limited and its nominee* 9913220 100% : - =

*Note

Fursuant to the approved scheme of amangement between Fine Technologies (India) Privale Limited and Royalux Lighting Private
Limited with effect from April 01, 2023, Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited merged with Royalux Lighting Private Limited, due
to which sharehoiding has been transfterred from Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited fo Royalux Lighling Private Limited from

effective date. refer note 53
16.4 The Company's ullimate holding Company is "IKIO Lighting Ltd" (Formerly Known as IKIO Lighting Pwvt Ltd).

16.5 No class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash or
bought back during the period of 5 years immediately proceeding the balance sheet date,

16.6 Terms/rights attached to equity share

Voting

Each holder of equity shares is enfitled to one vote per share held,

Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to
approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual general meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. The
Company has not distributed any dividend in the current year and previous year.

Liguidation

In the event of liquidalion of the Company, The holders of equity shares shall be enfitled to receive all of the remaining assets of
the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of
edquily shares held by the sharehaolders.
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Notes to the financial statements as ot March 31, 2024

(INR in million, except share and per share data, uniess otherwise stofed)

17

18

As al As at
Offier equity March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 114.65 (1.14)
[+] Net profit for the year 35.42 117.79
Closing balance {A) 152.07 116.65
Securities premium
Securifies premium during the year 36.18 -
Securities premium (B) 36.18 -
Other comprehensive income
Cpaning 0.37 -
Add: other comprehensive income far the year 0.02 0.37
Closing balance {C) 0.39 0.37
Total other equity {A+B+C) 188.64 117.02
Notes
Eguity Component

The equity component is measured os the difference betwaen the fair volue of the compound instrument and the fair value of the

liability component.
Securities premium

The omount received in excass of face volue of the equity shares is recognised in Securities premium. The reserve can be utilised only

for limited purposes in accordance wilh Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013,
Other comprehensive income

The Company recognises change on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability as part of other comprehensive

incocme with separate disclosure, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses.

Borrowings (Non current) As at

As af

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Secured
Indusind term loan .
Unsecured

Infercompany deposits 344.20

7.56

Total Borrowings (Non current) 364.20

7.56

Less: Cument maturities of non-cument borowings fincluded in note 21| =

Bomrowings (Non current) 364,20

7.56

Footnotes:-
The Company's exposure to currency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in refer note 45,

ar en arch 31, 2024
Secured loan
Term loan

Indusind Bank Ltd

The Company has availed long term loan from Indusind Bank, the loan s secured by first and exclusive charge on hypathecation of
entire mavable fixed assets & equitable merigage on industrial lond and building of Royalux export private limited situated ot NSEZ,
and collateral first and exclusive merigage on industial land and building of Raina Mefal Pvt Ltd. It is further secured by personal
guarantee of Mr. Hardeep Singh and his relatives i.e Surmeet Kaur, Sanjeet Singh, Ishween Kour and corperate guarantee by Raina

Metal tech Private Limited

Rate of inferest of 8.50 % per annum. Term loans are repayable by September 29, 2023, The said laan has been prepaid during the

marira
Unsecured loan

Intercompany depasits camying Interest Rate @ 9.50% shall be repaid at the expiry of 3 years from the date of disbursement (Royalux

Lighting Private Limited 344.20 million), refer note 53,




For the year ended March 31, 2023

Secured loan

Term loan

Indusind Bank Lid

The Cempany has availed long ferm loan from Indusind Barnik, the loan is secured by first ond exclusive charge on hypothecation of
entire movable fixed ossets & equitable mortgage on industrial land and building of Royalux export private limited stuated at NSEZ,
and colleteral first and exclusive mortgoge on industrial land and building of Roina Metal Pvi Lid. it is further secured by persanal
guarantee of Mr. Hardeep Singh and his relatives e Surmest Kaur, Sanjeet Singh. lshween Kaur and corporate guarantes by Raina

mMetal tech Private Limited,

Rate of interest of 8.50 % per annum. Term ioans are repayable by September 29, 2023.

The loan outstanding amount is USD 0.09 Million as at March 31,2023,

5 As af As ot
19 Lease liobilities (Non-current) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities 689 724
6.89 7.24
As at As of
20 Provisions (Non-cument) March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Provision for employees benefits (refer nole no 41 ) -
Gratuity 0.23 138
Compensated absences 0.46 0.54
0,69 1.92
As al As ol
21 Borrowings (Current) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured
Focking credit loan - 123.84
Cash credit (refer note below) 48.92 39.74
Current maturities of long-term debt = 7.56
Unsecured
Directors 8220 83.10
Intercompany depaosits §9.79 127.3%
200.91 3B1.43
Footnotes:-
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Secured loan

22 lease liabilities (Current)

Packing credit loan and cash credit

The Company has ovailed working capital loan [Fre/Past Shipment/P5R and Cash credit) from HDFC bank [sanctioned Rs, 230.00 Mn
with sublimit of cash credit Rs, 50.00 Mn ). The loan is securad by personal guarantee given by Mr. Hardeep Singh and Mrs. Surmeet
Kaur. it is turther secured by inventory, frade receivables and Corporate guarantee [collateral securily of equitable mortgage on
industrial land & Building] of IKIO Solution Private Limited preperty located at industrial property, plot no. 10 Sector 154, Mandali
villoge, Moido- 201301,

During the year , the Company has pald packing credit loan .

Unsecured loan

L. Interest free loan repayable on demand from Direclors as at March 31, 2034 (Mr. Hordeep Singh 42,40 million and Mrs Surmesed
Kaur 192.80 million)

2. Intercompany deposits camying Interest Rafe @ 9.50% repayabie on demand as of March 31, 2024 (IKIO Lighting Ltd 49.79 million].

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Secured loan

Packing credit loan and cash credit

The Company has availed working capital loan (Pre/Post Shipment/PSR and Cesh eradit] from HDFC bank [sanctioned Rs. 230.00 Mn
with sublimif of cash credit Rs. 50.00 Mn ). The loan is secured by personal guarantees given by Mr. Hardeep Singh and Mrs. Surmeet
Kaur. It is further secured by inventory. rade receivables and Corporate guarantes (collateral security of equitoble mertgage on
industrial land & Building) of IKIO Solution Private Limited property located at induskial property, plot no. 10 Sector 158, Mandoli
village, Moida- 201301,

Unsecured loan

1. Interest free loan repayable on dermand from Direetors as at March 31, 2023 {Mr. Hardeep Singh 63.90 million and Mrs Surmeet
Kaur 19.20 million)

24 Intercompany deposits camying Interest Rate @ 9.50% repoyable on demand as at March 31, 2023 (IKIO Lighting Ltd 64,79 million
ond Fine Technologies Pvi Ltd 62.60 million)

As at As af
Morch 31. 2024 March 31, 2023

Lease liabilifies 0.35 0.32




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Notes to the financial statements as ot March 31, 2024

fiNR in million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stafed)

As af As af
23 Trade payables March 31, March 31,
0724 023
total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 684 4.70
fotal outsianding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 481 15.33
11.47 20.03

Foolnote:

Ageing Schedule for Trade Payable- March 31, 2024

Parficulars

Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 from due date of payment

Not Due
lasthan 4o vean| 2.8 Yooes |MomWoRS|
year Years
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 686 - - - - .86
Other than micro enterprises and smoll enlerprises 2.67 1.55 0.59 - - 4.81
Micro enterprises and small enterprises -Disputed Dues - = = = £
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises-Dispuled
Dues = B -
Total 9.53 1.55 0.59 - - 11.67
Ageing Schedule for Trade Payable- March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding as ot March 31, 2023 from due dale of payment
Mot Due
ke han ) 1-2Years| 2-3 Years Mave Bion 3 Total
year Years
IMicro enlerprises and small enferprises 470 = = Z - 470
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.70 12.52 0.10 - - 15.33
Micro enterprises and small enterprises -Disputed Dues = = = - - -
Other than micro enterprises and small enferprises-Disputed
Dues = & < - 2 =
Total 7.40 12.52 0.10 = = 20.03

I. For rade payables 1o related parties please refer note 42
ii. Trade creditor are non inferest bearing.

iii. For explanation on the Cornpany credif risk management process, refer nofe 45,
iv. Suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Mediurm Enterprise Development Act, 2006 refer note 45.

‘—ipace intenfionally left blank-—




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2024

{INR in million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

24 Other financial liabilities (Current)

Expense poyable

Creditors perfaining to Caopital Expenditure
Interest Accrued But Not Due

Temperary book overdraft

Other Payables

25 Other current liabilities

Statutory dues poyabile
Advance fram customers

24 Provisions (current)

Provision for emplovess benefits
Gratuity
Compensated Absences

27 Current tax liabilities (Net)

Pravision for income tax

Az at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.55 1.66
: 0.28
5.66 2.22
- 32.50
1.468 20.21
9.8%9 56.87
As at As ai
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.80 0.75
221 -
3.01 0.75
As af As at
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
0.01 0.0
0.04 0.02
0.05 0.03
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023




33 Finance costs

Bank Interest

Interest on borowing
Interast on lease liabilities
Interest on income tax

34 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciotion on property plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amarfisation of right of use and other intangible assels frefer note 4 & 5)

35 Other expenses

Bank charges
Conveyance expense
Computer repair
Insurance

Rent

CSR expense

Job wark

Rates and taxes
Auditor remuneration
SE? online EDI charges
Lab testing expense
Legal and professional charges
GST ineligible credit
Directors sitting fees

Security and maintenance charges

Printing and stationery

Repair and maintenance expense
Tour and traveling expense
lTelephone expense

Vehicle expense

Selling and distribution expense

Consumable goods ond dies & togcls

Electricity and waler expenses
Uridentified financial loss
Freight

Generator and fuel expense
Sundry balance writeoff

Loss on disposal of assets
Miscellaneous sxpense

Footnotes:

i.Details of Auditor remuneration (excluding goods & service tax)

Statutory Audit*
Tox Audit*
Dui of pocket expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
11.06 12.05
24.51 2.47
0.71 0.73
1.78 =
40.06 15.25
Year ended Yeaor ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7.00 6.24
3.35 3.39
10.35 9.463
Yeor ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.68 1.58
016 015
0. 0.07
0.74 0.60
Q.16 0.10
1.20 -
&.60 =
0.34 0.23
0.62 0.45
0.09 Q.10
4.48 475
15 4.50
1.31 4,44
013 0.08
0.95 C.a8
0.23 0.28
4.73 3.99
2.49 0.33
0.44 0.42
0.03 0.01
3.88 11.462
0.04 0.1
272 3.61
- 10.00
416 41.80
0.32
0.01 -
1.52 -
1.25 0.71
42.86 90.80
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.60 0.20
B 0.25
0.02
0.62 0.45




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Statement ol Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in million, except share and per share data, unless atherwise stated)

36 Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 on 'Earnings Per Share'(EPS)

37

Basic and diluted earnings per share

-Basic [Rs.)

-Diluted (Rs.)

Nominal value per share

(a) Profit altributable to equity shareholders

Profit for the year

Profit aftributable to equity shareholders

(b) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Cpening balance of issued equity shares

Effect of shares issued during the vear, if any
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS

At present, the company does riot have any dilutive potential equity share.

Contingent Liabilifies and Other Commitments

As ot March 31, 2024 As af March 31, 2023

3.65 13.04
3.65 13.04
10.00 10.00
35.44 11779
35.44 112.79
2030858 10000
675023 2020848
9705691 9030868

Pariculars

As al March 31, 2024 As af March 37, 2023

Conlingent Liabilities
Corporate Guaraniee Given

Capital Commitments

Particulars

As at
As at March 31, 2024 h 31, 2023

Capital Commitment({Nef of Capital Advances)

Leases

= 0.72

The Company is a lessee under operating lease of one premises. The Company has executed non-cancsllable operating leases for a period

of 40 quarters,

Disclosure in respect of such operating leases is as giver below:
The movement in lease liabiliies during the yearended 15 as follows:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 As af March 31, 2023

Opening Balance

Addilion from takeover of propristary business
Finance cost accrued during the year
Payment of lease liobilities

Adjustment on occount of modification
Closing Balance

MNan-current Lease liabilities
Curmrent Lease liobilities

The delails of the maturities of lease liabilities ot vear ended are as follows:

7.56 -
6.81
0.71 0.73
{1.03) (0.96)
- 0.98
7.24 7.56
.89 7.24
0.35 0.32

Particulars

As of March 31, 2024 As ot March 31, 2023

Not later than one year
Later than ane year but not later than five years
Later than five years

0.35 0.32
1.67 .64
5.22 5.60
7.24 7.56

The Cempany is a lessee under operating lsase of one premises. The Company has executed short term operafing leases for a period of 11

Months renewable as per mutual agreement.

The aggregate lease rental of Rs. 0.12 [March 2023: Rs 0.10) million on such leases has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The lzase ogreement does not have any restrictive onerous clauses, other than that those normally prevalent in similar agreemens for use of

assefs, rent escalation, and lease renewal.

The lease agreements do not have any resiriclive onerous clouses. other than that those normally prevalent in similar agresments for use of

assets, rent escalafion. and lease renewal.




Right-of-use assets
The changes in the camying value of Right of use assets for the year ended are as follows :

Particulars As at March 31, As ot March 31,

= 2724 b [ o i |
Opening Balance 42.45 -
MNet Addition from tokeover of proprietary business - 44.87

Addition -during the year -

Adjustment on account of madification = 0.98
Dep_recimian of Right of use assets {3.33) [3.39)
Closing Balance 39.12 42.44

The lease agreements do not have any restrictive onerous clauses, other than that those normally prevalent in similar agreemenis for use of
assets, rent escalation, and lease renewal,

3% Disclosure relafing to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006:

40

Padiculars As at March 31, 2024 As ot March 31, 2023
The principal amount and the interest due thergon remaining unpaid fo any MSME supplier as ot the
end of each accounting year included in: 5.86 4,70

Principal amount due to microe and small enlerprisas = =

Interest due on above Z -

The amount of interest paid by The buysr in Terms of secTion 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along wiih
the amounts of the pavment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year - -

The amounis of the payments made fo micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during
each accounting year, S =

The amount of interest due ond poyoble for the yeor of delay in making payment [which have been
paid but beyond the appointment day during the year) but without odding the Inierest specified
under the MSMED Act, 2004, - -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid af the end of each accounting year. - -

The amount of further inferest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unfil such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid fo the small enterprise for the purpose of
disaliowance os a deductible under section 23 of ihe MSMED Act 2006. - -

Segment reporting

A. Basis for Segmentation

An operating segment isa component ihat engages in business activities from which it may earm revenues and incur expenseas, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The board of directors have been identified os the Chief Operaling Decision Maker [CODM), since fhey are responsible for all major decision
w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business Plon, preparation of budget, planning, sxpansion, alliance. joint venture, merger and
acquisition, end expansion of any facility.

The Company's board reviews the resulls of each segmenl! on a quarterly basis, The company's board of directors uses Profit before tax [PAT)
to assess the performence of the operafing segments. Accordingly, there is only ane reportable segment for the Company which is "Sale of

Product”. hence. no soecific disclosures have been made.
Entity wide disclosures

B. Information about reportable segments

The Company deals in one business segrnent namely Manufacturing of LED Lighting therefore, product wise revenue disclosures are not
opplicable o the Company.

i) Information about geographical areas

Company operates in special economic 2one and exports in multiple geographic location ( United state of America and Gatar | and
occordingly, there are no separate reportable geographical segments.




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC390952

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in million. except share and per share data, uniess otherwise stated)

41 Employee Benefits
The Company contributes 1o the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India,
A. Defined contributicn plans:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Contribution to provident fund 1.07 0:45

B. Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Company cperates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entitles an empioyee to receive half month's salary for each

vear of comnleted servine ot tha times of ratirernent/exit, The arahiitv liobility is antireiv Linfundad

The present value of obligation is determined based on ocluarial valuation using the Prejected Unit Credit Method, which recognise each period of
service as giving rise to additional employee benefit entilement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benafit obligation for gratuity were caried cut as at March 31, 2024. The present
value of the defined benefil cbligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Cradit

Method,

A. The following table set out the status of the defined benefit obligation:

As at March 31, As ot March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
Net defined benefit liability
Gratulty 0.24 1.39
Total employee benefit liabilities 0.24 1.39
Mon-curent 0.23 1.38
Current 0.0 0.0

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances far net defined benefit [asset] Mability and s

components;
As at Mareh 31, 2024 As at March 31. 2023
Net Defined  rqir valye of Net defined
Particulars Defined benefit Fair value of defined  benefil plan assels benefit
obligation plan assets benefit _{assel)/ liability _
Balance at the beginning of ihe year 0.81 - 0.81 - - -
Addition from takeover of proprietary business - B 019 019
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 0.33 - 0.33 0.22 . 0.22
Interest cost (income) 0.07 - 0.07 0.03 - 0.03
Adjustment -
0.41 - 0.41 0.25 - 0.25
Included in OCI
Remeasursments loss/[gain) - - - - - .
Addition from takeover of proprietory business - - - . . -
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from;
Financial assumplions 0.03 - 0.03 0.01 - 0.01
Demographic assumptions - - {0—0 : ggﬁ. - ggﬁ
Experience adjustment 0.01 - el ¥ - ;
R l ‘a.az' - 0.02 0.37 - 0.37
Other
Acquisition 0.10) 10.10) . - -
Confributions paid by the employer . (0.90) {0.70) . = -
Benefits paid - - - - - -
[0.10] [0.90] [1.00] - = =
Balance ot the end of the year 1.13 (0.90) 0.23 0.81 - iR}
Year ended Yeor ended
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Service cost 0.33 022
Met intersst cost 0.07 0.03

**=* Grotfuity balance is not matching due to intergroup employee fransfer as at March 31, 20723,




C. Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets

As at As al

Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Plan assets at the beginning of the yeor E E
Actual company coniributions 0.90

Expecied refurn on plan assets N *
Actuarial gain/{loss) ¥ ¥
Plan assets at the end of the year S =
Total 0.90 =

a) Economic Assumptions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growih rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields avallable on govemment
bonds af the accounting date with a term that maiches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate fakes inta account of infiation, seniority, promotion
ond ofher relevant factors on long term beasis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selected by the company.

Asafl March 31,  As af March 31,
Particulars g sl
Discount Rafe 709% 7.36%
Expected rate of future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

The discount rate hos been assumed at March 31, 2023: 7,36% which is determined by reference to market yield af the balance sheet date on
govemment securifies. The estimates of future salary increases, considared in actuarial valuation, fake account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

b) Demoagraphic gssumptions

As of March 31, As af March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Retirement Age 60 Years &0 Years
Martaiity rates inclusive of prevision for disability IALM [2012-14)  I1ALM (2012-14)
Withdrowal rate (%) 6% &%

D. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date lo one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit cbligafions by the amount shown below:

As af March 31, 2024 As af March 31, 2023
Particulars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movemen) [0.11) 0.3 [0.08) 0.09
Salary escalation rate (19 mavement) 012 0.11) 0.08 10.08)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumpfions shown.

Sensitivitias due to mortalitv is not material and hence impact of chanae not colculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions.in payment, rate of increase of pensions before refirement and life expectancy are not
applicable being a lump sum bensfit on retirernent.

Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations ore based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over fime. As such company is exposed to various risks as
i. Salary Increases- More than expected increase in the future salary levels may results in increase in the labilities.

ii. Discount Rate: In case of vield on the govemment bonds drops in the future period then it may result in increase in ligbility.

iii, Withdrawals — if the actual withdrawal raie is furn out to be more or less than sxpected then it may resulf in increase in the liobilifies.

iv. Mortality - if the actual mortality rate in the future turns out to be more or less than expected then it may result increase in the liabilities.

E. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

As ol March 31,  As af March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than | year D.o2 0.01
Between 1 - 2 yeors 0.05 0.02
Between 2 - 5 yaars 0.28 0.8

Over 5 Years 2.58 1.18

Total e e - | I
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Stolement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

[INR in million, except share and pershare data, unless otherwise staried)

42 Reloted Parly Disclosure
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related parfies where contral exisls andfor

with whom fransactiors have taken place during the penod and description of relalionships, as identified and cerified by the manogement
are:

a) List of related parfies

Relationship Name of related party
Enterprises in which key management personnel and thelr  Fine Technologies (India) Privale Limited (Till September 11, 2022)
relatives are able to exercise significant influence® Royalux Lighfing Private Limited (Tl September 11, 2022)

IKIO Lighting Limited! (Til Seplember 11, 2022)
Raina Metal Tech, Private Limited

IKIO Solutions Prvate Limited

IKIO Led Lighfing LLC

Utfimate Holding Cempany IKIQ Lighting Ltd (From September 13, 2022)

Holding Company Reyalux Lighting Private Limited (From Agil 01, 2023)
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited [From September 11, 2022
fill Morch 31, 2023), refer note 53,

Key Managerial Personnel Mr, Hardeep Singh
Mz, Surmieet Kaur
M. Kishore Kumar Sansi- Mon Execufive Directar

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel Mrs. shween Kaur
Mr. Sanjeet Singh

* With whom significant ransockions have been taken ploce duing the current and/or pravious year
b) Details of reloted party fransactions are as below:

i As ot As af
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Transaction during the Year

Expenses
Furchases
Fine Technologies private Limiled = 54,00
Royalux Lighfing Privale Limited 65.29 44,44
IKIC Lighting limited 8.32 5.41
IKIO Selutions Private Limiled 3.20 =
Purchases of Fixed assels
IKIO Lighting krmited - 212
Interesi Expense
[KIC Lighting Limited b.16 1.66
Royalux Lighting Private Limited 20.35 =
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited B 0.81
Loan Taken
Mr. Hardeep Singh - 113.60
Mrs, Surmeet Kour 0.40 26,80
IKIO Lighfing Limited 5.00 75.7%
Royalux Lighting Private Limiled 31160 -
Fine Technalagies private Lmiled B 63.33
Repayment of loan taken
Mr. Hardeep Singh 1.50 42.70
Mrs. Surmieet Kaur . 7.40
[EIKD Lighfing Limited - $.50
Royalux Lighting Private Lirited 10,00 -
Short Term Employee Benefits
Direclor SHting Fees
Mr. Kishore Kumner Sansi 013 008
Rent

Raina MetalTech Private Limited 0.2 Do




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U319090L2021 PTC390952

Staternent of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

[INR i million. except share and per share derfa, onless otherwrse stafec)

Income
Revenue from operations
IKIC Led Lighting LLC 7112 49.83
Other Income
Royalux lighting Private Limited 0.6% 073
As ot As at
€) Balance outstanding with or from reloted pariies as:- March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables
IKIC Led Lighting LLC 58.08 51.40
Advance to Supplier
IKIO Lighting Limited 0.4 =
Amaunis Payable
IKIO Led Lighting LLC o0z 002
IKIO Lighting Limited - 1.14
Fine Technologies |India| Private Limited - -
Royalux Lighting Privale Limited 495 -
IKIC Solufions Private Limited 1.58 -
Amounts other payable
IKIO Solutions Private Umifed 012 17.05
Amounts other receivable
Fine Technologles (India) Private Limited - 0.09
Rayalux Lighting Private Limifed - 074
Bomowings
Mr. Hordeep Singh 62.40 63.90
Mrs. Surmeet Kaur 19.80 19.20
IKIO Lighting Limited 69,79 64.79
Fine Technologies (Indial Private Limited - 462,60
Royalux Lighting Privale Limited 364.20 -
Interest Accrued Bul Not Due
IKIO Lighting Limited (1] 1.49
Royalux Lighting Private Limited 475 -
Fine Technologies {India) Privote Limited - 0.73
Equitable Morlgage Taken from
[KIC Solutions Prvate Limited 4892 -
Corporate Guarantee/Personal Guarantee Taken frem
Raina Metal Tech Pyt Lid - 7.56
IKIO Solufions Prvate Limited 48,92 143.59
Mr. Hardeep Singh 48.92 171.15
Mrs. Surmast Kaur 48.92 17115
Mrs. lshween Kaur - 7.56
Mr. Sanjeet Singh - 7.56

Terms and condifions of ransactions with the related parties

i. The terms and condifions of the ransactions with key management persannel were no more favourable than those available, or which
might reasonably be expecied o be available, on similar fransactians to nan-key managament personnel related entifies on an arm’s length

basis.

i. All outsianding balonces with these relafed parties are priced on an am’'s length basis and are lo be setfled in cash. None af the balances
ore secured.

iii. The amount disclosed in Corporate guarantee taken in period ending March 31, 2024 is combined guarantee of IKIO Solufion Privale
Limited, Mr. Hordeep Singh and Surmest Kaur,




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC390952

Statement of Profit & Lass for the year ended March 31, 2024

{INR in million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

43 Eamings in foreign cumrency
F.O.B. value of exports
CIF value of exports

44 Expenditure in foreign curfrency

As ot

521.50
8.72

As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
—_— o 4? archdl, 2043

674.82

As at

As at

March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Property, plant and equipment - &.51
Raw material 184.19 338.05
45 Fair value measurement and financial instruments

a) Financial instruments - by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of finoncial assets and financial labilities, including their level in the fair value
As at March 31, 2024

Canying Value Fair value measurement using
i FVTPL Fvocl “"’g"""" Total Level 1 Level 2 level 3
Financial assets
Non-current
Other financial asset - - 1.39 1.39 - -
Current
Trade receivables - - 527.83 527.83 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3.09 3.09 - - -
Bank Balances (other than Cash & Cash Equivalenis) - - - - - - -
Total . - 532.31 532.31
Financial liabilities
Mon-current
Bomowings - B 364.20 354,20 -
Non Current lense liabilities - £.89 489 - -
Current
Borrowings - - 20091 200.%1 - - -
Curent lease liobililies - - 0.35 0.35 . - -
Trade payables = - 11.67 11.67 - -
Other financial iabililies - 2.89 9.89 - -
Total - 593.91 593.91 |
As ot March 31, 2023

Carrying Value Fair valve measurement using
KSR FVTPL FVOCi "‘“‘é’x“’ Total Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3
Financial assets
MNon-current
Other financial assel - 1.31 1.3 -
Current
Trade receivables - - 294.78 29478 -
Cash and cash equivalents - = 1.34 1.34 B -
Bank Bolances (other than Cash & Cash Equivalents) - 2.25 2.25 - - -
Total - - 299.48 299.68
Financial liabilities
Non-cumrent
Borowings ¥ = ¥ =
Mon Current lease licbilities - 7.24 7.24 -
Current
Borrowings - 381.63 381.43 - - -
Curent lease liabilities B - 0.32 0.32 - - -
Trade payables - - 20.03 2003 - - -
Other financial liakilities - - S5687 54.87 - .
Total - - 464,09 4466.09

Level 1: tincludes financial insfruments measured using quoted prices.

Level Z: The fair volue of financial instruments that are not fraded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximize

the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entit
instrument are observabie, the instrurnent is included in level 2.

¥ speciiic estimates. If oll significant inputs required o fair value an




Level 3: I one or more of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable market data. the instrument is included in level 3. The fair value of financial
assets and liabilities included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepied pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices from cbservable curent market fransactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments.

The Company's borrowings have been confracted at floating rates of inferest, Accardingly, the carrying value of such borowings {including interest
accrued but not due) which approximates iair value.

The carrying amounts of frade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and licbilities, opproximates the fair
values, due to their short-term nature, Fair valus of nan-current financial assets which includes bank deposits |{due for maturity after twelve manths from
the reparting date) and security depaosits is similar to the carrying value as there is no significant difierences between camying value and fair value.

The fair value for security deposits were calculated based on discounted cash fiows using a current lending rafe. They are classified as level 3 fair values
in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty cradif risk,

Valuation processes
The Management performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilifies required for financial reporting purposes an a periodic basis, including level 3
fair values,

b) Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk
» Liguidity risk
* Interest rate risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's sk management framework. The
Board of Directors have authorised senior management to establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of properly
defined framework in line with the businesses of the company.

The Company's risk management policies are established fo identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to sef appropriate risks limits and
confrols, fo monitor risks and adherence to fimits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities,

The Company hos policies covering specific arsos, such as interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, other price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and the use of
derivofive and non-derivative financial instruments. Complignee with policies and expasure fimits is reviewed on a cenfinuous basis,

i. Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assels in the balance sheet
Particulars Asat March 31,  As ot March 31,

2024 2023
Trade Receivables 527.83 29478
Cash and cash equivalents 3.09 1.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 225

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty ta o financial instrument falls to mest its contractuol obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from custamers,

The Campany's credit risk Is primarily fo the amaount due from customer and investments. The Company maintains a defined credit policy and monitors
the exposures to these cradit risks on an cngoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits
with scheduled commerciol banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rafing agencies.

The maximurm exposure to the credil risk at the reporling date is primarily from trade receivables. Trode receivabies are unsecured and are derved from
revenue earmned fram customers primarily located in India. The Company does monitar the economic environment in which i operates. The Company
manages ifs Credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring credil worthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its expected cradit lossas in respect of trade receivable. The management uses g simplified approach (i.e.
based on lifetime ECL| for the purpose of impairment loss allowance.

ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obiigafions associoted with iis financial liobilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another finoncial asset, The Company's opproach fo managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity fo meet ifs liabilities when they are fallen due, under boih nermal and stressed condifions. witheut incurming unocceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company's reputation,

The Company believes that its liquidity position, including fotal cash lincluding bank deposits under lien and excluding interest accrued bul not due) of
Rs. 3.09 millions as at March 31, 2024 [March 31, 2022 Rs. 3.59 millions) and the anficipated future intemally generated funds from aperations will enable it
to meet its future known obligafions in the ardinary course of business.

Frudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securifies and the availability of funding through an adeguate
amount of credil facilifies to meet obligations when due. The Company's policy is to regulary monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it

maintains sufficient reserves of cash and tunding from group companies fo meet its liquidity requirernents in the short and long term.

The Company's liquidity management process as monitored by management, includes the following:

- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash fiows ta ensure that requirements con be mat.
- Maintaining relling forecasts of the Company's liquidity pesition on the basis of expected cash flows,




Exposure to liguidity risk
The following are the remaining contraciual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporiing date. The amounts are gross and undiscourited, and includes
interest accrued but not due on bomrowings.

As At Maych 31, 2024 Contractual cash flows
Canrying Belween one
Ao Less than a6 ve More than five Total
one Year year
years
Non Current
Mon current borowings 344.20 - 344.20 B 344,20
Man current leose lobilifies 489 = 6.89 - 6.89
Current B
Bomowings 20091 20091 - - 200.91
Current leose liabilifies 035 035 - - 0.35
Trade payables 11.47 11.67 - - 11.67
|Other financial liabilities 2.89 ?.89 - - .89
Total 593.91 222,82 371.09 - 593.91
As Af 315t March 2023 Contractual cash lows
Carrying Between one
AniGin Less than oy More than five Total
one Year year
yeors
Non Current
Non cument borowings 5 x 7 i 5
Men current lease liobilities 724 . 7.24 - 7.24
Cumrent -
Borowings 381.63 381,63 - - 381.63
Current lease liabilities 0.32 0.32 - - 0.32
Trade payables w003 2003 - - 20.03
Other finoncial loblities 56.87 54.87 - - 56.87
Total 466.09 458.85 7.24 - 466.09
iii. Marketl Risk

Marked risk is the nsk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becouse of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rote risk, curency risk and other price risk, the Company mainly hos exposure to two fype of market risk nomely: currency risk and interest rote sk,
The objective of markef risk management is 1o manage and control market risk exposures within acceptoble parameters. while oplimizing the returm.

Cumrency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of o financial instrument will fluctuate becouse of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
exposed lo the effects of fluctuation in the prevaiing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cosh flows fo the extent of eamings and
expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure arises primarily due to sxchange rote fluctuations betwaen the functional cumency and other curencies from the
Company's operalfing, investing and financing activities.

Exposure fo cumrency risk

The summary of guentitative data obout the company exposure to curency risk, os expressed in Indian Rupess as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

As af March 31, 2024

ok Currency Amount Cumency Amount
Financial Assets
Trode Receivables INR 527.83 usp 433
Financial Uabilities
Trade Pavable INR 2.53 uso 0.03
Barowing INR . UsD =
FParfic ular As at 315t March 2023

Cumency Amount Currency Amaouni
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables INR 29478 ust 358
Financial Liabilties
Trade Pavable INR 6.4 use 0.07
Borrowing

INE 7.56 s 0.9




Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a finaneial insfrument will fluctuate becayse of changes in maorket interest rates. The Company's
main interast rate risk arises from long-term barowings with variable rates, which expose the Compuany o cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company's interest rate risk arises from fhe term loans, Packing credit loan and Cash cradit loan from banks camying ficating rate of interest, These

abligations exposes the Company fo cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company's berowing to interest rate changes as reported fo the
management at the end of the reporting pened are as follows:

March 31, M 31,
Variable-rate instruments e dmn s o dm;;m
Term Loan - 7.54
Packing credit loan - 123.84
Cash credit loan 48,99 ;!2,?3
48.92 171.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A feasonably possible chonge of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased [decreased) equity and profit or lass
by the amounis shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign curency exchange rates, remain constant.

Parficular Profit & Loss Equity, Net of Tax
50 bps 50 bps
increase decrease

50 bps increase | 50 bps decrease

Interest on term loans from banks
For the period ended March 31, 2024 [0.24) 0.24 [0.18) 0.8
For the year ended March 31,2023 [0.84) 0.86 [0.64) 0.64




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Statement of Profif & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(INR in million, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

46 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Compary's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves attributable

1o the equity holders of the Company,

Monogerment assesses the Compony's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and fhe risk characteristics of the

tndarlving assets . : P .
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may refurn capital to shareholders, raise new dett or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debis divided by total capital

iequity affributable fo owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts),

As at As at
Particular March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Bomowings 200.71 381.63
Borrowings (Non current] 364.20 -
Less : Cash and cash equivalent {3.0%) (1.34)
Adjusted net debt (A) 562.02 380.29
Total equify (B) 28777 207.33
Adjusted net debf fo adjusted equity ratie (A/B) 1.95 1.83
47 Ratio Analysis Disclosure
Year ended march 31,
Ratios — 2024 Year ended march 31,2023 | % change
Amount Ratios Amaount os
Current Ratio {refer note 1)= Cument Assets 810.86 598.40
rreres : 73
Current Liabilifies 297 45 3.57 459.63 1.30 173.83%
Debt Equity Ratio Total Depbt 545,11 4 381.43 & 6.69%
Totol Shareholders 287.77 12 207.33 s gk
Cebt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for 104.83 142.67
Aot cariree
Finance Cosi+Short
ferm debt{including 0.43 0.36 20.94%
current maturities of 241.32 397.20
long term debi}+
Return on Equity Ratio [ROE] [refer note 2| Net Profit after Taxes-
v 35.42 117.79
Pre::a-rence Dividend (If 0.1 0.57 78.39%
Equily Shareholder's 287.77 207.33
Evimele
Inventory Tumover Ratio o3t of Goods Sold 368.07 1 476.02 334 -40.95%
Average Inventony 277.21 a3 142.49 i
Trade Receivable Turnover Ralio {refer note 3)*|Cradit Sales 530.22 £94.82 -
Average Account 1.27 4.71 -72.6
Receivables 411,30 147.39
Trade Payabie Tumaover Ratio [refer note 4)* Credit Purchoses 353.0¢ 610,21
Average Account 15.85 2228 10.0] 61.00 -63.48%
Pavables L :
Mel Capital Tumover Ratio [refer note 5)* |Sales 530.22 | 49487]
Average Working 1.47 10,09 -B5.45%
: 341,09 £8.84
Capital
Net Profit Ratio {refer note 2)* Met Profit 35.42 117.79
I d 60,
Sales 530.02 0.07 £94.82 0.17 40.59%
Return on Capitol Employed (pre tax) [refer BIT 94.48 133.04
nofe 6" Capital Employed 852.88 0.11 S88.95 023| -5096%
Note*

1. Curren! ratio has increased due fo increased receivables and reduction in working capital loan.

2. Decraase in ROE due to reduction in sale and profit margin, further reduction by tax implication due to tax deduction u/s 10AA by 50% as

being éth year of company's operation,
3. Decrease in ratio is because of increosing frade receivable




48

Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
A. Amounts recognised in Profit or Loss

Current tax expense
Current year
Adiustment for priar vears

Deftemmed tax charge/credit
Change in recognised temporary differences
Total Tax Expense

B. Amounis recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

As al Az at
March 21, 2024 March 31. 2023
1307 =

593 =
19.00 -

T9.00 -

Particulars

As ot March 31, 2074 | As ot March 31, 2023

Bedore Tax Tax Net of Tax Before Tax Tax Net of Tax

Remeasurements of defined benal) licbility

C. Reconciliglion of effective tax rate

0.02 ¥ 0.02 - = 2

Particulars

Esaf
March 31, 2024
Rate Amount

Frofit before tax

Tax using the Company's domestic fox rafe [A)
Tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses

Non-taxable income

Others

Defered Tax

Prior year erors/adiustment

Total (B)

(A)-(B)

27.82% 54.42 =
15.14 .

206 .
0.90 2
(5.03) .

593 =

19.00 -

Note :- Under Section 10AA of Income Tax Act, 1961 for first 5 years 100% of the prefits and goins derived from the export are exempt from Income
Tax. First § years complated in E.Y. 2022-73. From curent year L., F.Y, 2023-24, Company will get 50% deduction of such profits and gains. In the

current year tax computation is done.

49 Details with respect to the Benami Properties:
Mo proceedings have beean inifiated or pending against the enlity under the Benami Transactions (prohibition) Act, 1988 for the yeor ended March
31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023,

50  Undisclosed income
There is no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts. No such income is surendered or disclosed as income during the
yeor in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1981,

51 Details of Crypio Currency or Virlual Currency

Profif or loss on fransactions involving Crypio curency or Virtual Currency Mo transaction during the year

Amount of currency held as af the reporting date Mo transaction during The year

Depeosits or advances from any person for fhe purpose of frading or investing in Cryplo Currency /
virtucl curency

Mo transaction during the year

52 Wilful Defaulter:
No bank or financial institution has declared the company as "Wilful defaulter”.

53 Scheme of amalgamation of Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited with Royalux Lighting Private Limiled
Pursuant fo and in ferms of the Scheme of Amalgomation by ond among Fine Technologies (India) Private Limited (Holding Company) as Transferor
Company, Royalux Lighting Privale Limited as Transferee Company (Fellow Subsidiary Company), under Sections 233 of the Companies Act, 2013,
ond other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Companies (Compromises, Arangements and Amalgamations| Rules, 2014 ("Seheme”),
which was approved by the Regional Director [NR] vide its order dated March 18, 2024 which came info effect from April 01, 2023

= As per the approved scheme, existing shareholders of Fine Technologies (Indic) Private Limitad will receive &7 equity shores of Transferee Company

for every 1 equity share held in Transteror Company as a purchase consideration.

* Pursuant fo the scheme, the Company becomes a wholly owned Subsidiary of Rovalux Lighting Frivate Limited.
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fIMR i millian, éxcep! share dnd per share dala, uriless olherwine stoted]

54 Details in respect of Ullizalion of Bamowed funds and share premium shall be provided in respect of:
Transachions where an efilily has provided any advance, lnan, ar No such fransachion has laken place durng the yeor _]
invested funds 1o ony ather person [5) er entityf enlifies. including

Transaclions where an enlity has recelved any tund from any person  |No stich Iransachion has fakan piace duning the yoor
[8) or entity /! enfifies, including foreign enfity.

55 Relaofionship with Struck off Companies:
Ne fransaction has been macde with the company siick ofl under teclion 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 ar section 560 of
Comparies Acl, 1954 dising fhe year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2073;

56 Registration of charges or salistaclion with Registrar of Companies:
All opplicoble cases where regishration of charges or solisfaciion i required with Registrar of Companies have been done. Moy
tegisration o salisloclion is pending for the yeor ended March 31, 2024 and yeor ended March 31, 2003,

57 Compliance with number of layers of companies:
Where the company has complied with the number of layers presoribed under clouse 187) ol section 2 of the Acl read wilh
Companiss [Resticlion on number of lLoyers] Rules, 2017,

58 loon or advances granted to the pramaters, direclors and KMP: and the related parties:

Nai loan ot advaneas in the nature of loans are granted lo the promoters, directors, key manageticl persons ond the relofed parties
las defined under Componias Act, 2013, either sevenally o faintly with any other person that e

a) repoyoble oh demand or
b} withou! specilying any ferms o yeor of repaymert

59 Figures less than Rs. 5000 are disclosed as 0.00

For BGJC & Associales LLP & beholf of the Board of Direelars of
Chartered Accounlants

ALK KXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED é
Finm's Registtestion Mo.- 003304M /M500054 \ WMW/

g{ '“ Surmee! Kaur
Deacior

@"" - 3 DM 001 18495

Franaw Jain

Parines

Membeship No. 098308

Place; Noida
Date: May 24, 20124




